
William A. 'Bert' Miller, III
Mayor
Bernie Gessner
Mayor Pro-Tem
Josh M. FultzCouncilmember

James Harris
Councilmember

Pattie Pederson
Councilmember

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS
FEBRUARY 26, 2024

       
       
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 26th of February, 2024 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w 
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation - Bettye Tompkins, Salem House of Blessings Ministries
Pledge of Allegiance

 
3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.

Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.



4. Staff Report:

(a) Introduction of new employees: Jerry Hirsh (Police Officer/SRO); Martin Solis
(Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I); and Donald Mason, Jr. (Natural
Gas Technician). [Peggy Johnson, HR Director]

(b) Update on CIP Projects. [Jon MacKay, Graduate Engineer]

(c) Results of Annual Natural Gas Audit. [Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director]

(c) Board and Commission update. [City Council]

(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or
community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled
to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has
arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]

5. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 761-24, the City of Navasota
LOGIC Resolution to become a participant of the Local Government Investment
Cooperative (LOGIC) pool. [Maribel Frank, CFO]

6. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 1039-
24, closing a thirty-three (33’) foot portion of Horlock Avenue right-of-way within
Block 1 of the Felder Addition located at 1210 Kettler Street, Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]

7. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 760-24, authorizing the
submission of an application to the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) Rural Development for the Community Facilities Direct Loan, Grants, and
Guarantee Loans Program and authorize the mayor and city manager to act as the
City’s executive officer and authorized representative in all matters pertaining to
the City’s participation in the USDA Rural Development Program. [Kristin Gauthier,
Assistant City Manager]

8. Consideration and possible action on a new Parks & Recreation Department Facility
Use Policy. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]

9. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 23RD OF FEBRUARY, 2024

/JW/

BY: JASON WEEKS, CITY MANAGER



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 23rd of February, 2024 at 02:34 PM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.089.

DATED THIS THE 23RD OF FEBRUARY, 2024

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 26, 2024  
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: None. 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #4 
 

Staff Report: 

(a) Introduction of new employees: Jerry Hirsh (Police Officer/SRO); Martin Solis 
(Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I) and Donald Mason Jr. (Natural 
Gas Technician). [Peggy Johnson, HR Director] 
 

(b) Update on CIP Projects. [Jon MacKay, Graduate Engineer] 
 

(c) Results of Annual Natural Gas Audit. [Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director] 
 

(d) Board and Commission update. [City Council] 
 

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, 
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information 
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public 
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events 
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, 
or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is 
scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements 
involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City 
that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager] 

 

 

 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 

a. Peggy Johnson, HR Director, will introduce the new employees for the Police 
Department and Public Works Department. 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



b. Jon MacKay, Graduate Engineer, will give the City Council an update on our CIP 
Projects. 

 
c. Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director, will provide an update on the results of the 

annual natural gas audit. 
 

d. If applicable, the City Council will provide Board and Commissions updates. 
 
e. Staff and the City Council will provide updates on other upcoming events. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
No action required. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 

     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/21/24



Core Values

T
H
R
I
V
E

Teamwork & 
Collaboration

• We believe in the power of collective effort and cooperation.
• Foster a culture of collaboration among residents, businesses, and

government.
• Together, we can achieve greater outcomes and overcome challenges.

Honor & 
Integrity

• Uphold honesty, transparency, and ethical conduct in all endeavors.
• Demonstrate integrity in decision-making and actions for the greater good.
• Earn and maintain the trust of our community through principled

leadership.

Resilience & 
Adaptability

• Embrace change and remain agile in a constantly evolving world.
• Build resilience to face adversity and bounce back stronger.
• Learn from experiences to continuously improve and innovate.

Inclusivity & 
Diversity

• Celebrate and embrace the richness of our diverse community.
• Promote inclusivity, ensuring that all voices are heard and valued.
• Create an environment where everyone feels welcome and respected.

Vision & 
Progress

• Pursue a forward-thinking vision for the city’s growth and development.
• Encourage innovation and progressive ideas that benefit our residents.
• Strive to be a model city that sets new standards and inspires others.

Empowerment & 
Engagement

• Empower individuals to participate in shaping the city’s future.
• Encourage active citizenship and engagement in local decision-making.
• Support initiatives that enhance community involvement and civic pride.



2023-2024 
Strategic Plan

Mission Statement

Vision Statement

Core Values: THRIVE

Goals

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains our heritage, culture and uniqueness 
while maximizing our economic and social development.

Navasota 2027: What America wants to be — A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 
close-knit community filled with historical charm and promise for people and business.

Resilience & 
Adaptability

Planning & 
Economic 

Development

Marketing/ 
Communications Quality of Life Staffing

Human 
Resources

Facilities/
Buildings Infrastructure

Empowerment &
Engagement

Teamwork & 
Collaboration
Inclusivity & 

Diversity

Honor & 
Integrity
Vision & 
Progress



 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 

February 26, 2024 –  WORKSHOP @ 4:30 P.M. 

1. Called to order 
2. PID presentation 
3. Development agreement – Pecan Groves 
3. Adjourn 

 

February 26, 2024 –  DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/12/2024 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance  
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Introduce new employee: Jerry Hirsh (Police Officer/SRO); Donald Mason,  
    Jr. (Natural Gas Technician); and Martin Solis (Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator);  
    (b) Update of all CIP projects; (c) Gas Audit update; (d) Board and Commission update; and  
    (e) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Resolution No. 760-24 – Police consoles 
6. Facility Use Policy 
7. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 1041-24 - Budget Amendment (Jason W) 
8. Resolution No. 761-24 - authorization to invest in LOGIC 
9. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 1039-24, right-of-way closure for 1210 Kettler Street 
10.Adjourn 

 

March 11, 2024 –  DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/26/2024 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance  
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Introduce new parks dept. employees: Alexander Zaragoza and Jesus  
    Santillan; (b) Update of all CIP projects; (c) Board and Commission update; and  
    (d) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Proposals for fence work at the cemetery 
6. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of February 2024, (b) Municipal Court Report for  
    February 2024; (c) Expenditures for the month of February 2024 and (d) 2nd reading of  
    Ordinance No. 1041-24, budget amendment (Jason W) 
7. Adjourn 

 

March 18, 2024 –  WORKSHOP @ 4:30 P.M. 

1. Called to order 
2. Budget workshop 
3. Adjourn 

 

March 25, 2024 –  WORKSHOP @ 4:30 P.M. 

1. Called to order 
2. Manufactured Homes 
3. Rain Barrells 
4. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

March 25, 2024 –  DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 03/11/2024 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance  
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Update of all CIP projects; (b) Board and Commission update; and  
    (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Adjourn  

 



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

Agenda Date Requested: February 26, 2024  
Requested By: Maribel Frank, CFO  
Department: Financial Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Resolution No. 761-24 & Enrollment 
Packet 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
 
Consideration and possible action to on Resolution No. 761-24, the City of 
Navasota LOGIC Resolution to become a participant of the Local Government 
Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) pool. 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
In accordance with the approved Investment Policy (January 22, 2024), the investment 
officers, the Chief Financial Officer and the City Manager, are entrusted to make 
investments of the city’s funds in a manner which will provide the maximum security of 
the principal, while meeting the daily cash flow needs of the city and conforming to the 
Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), under Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256.  
 
Currently, the city participates in three (3) local government investment pools: 
TexSTAR, TexPool, and Texas CLASS. Investment pools function much like money 
market funds. Typically, government investment funds pool the resources of 
participating governments and invest in various securities as permitted under state law. 
Staff recommend adding the Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) pool 
as a fourth option for investing city funds. The plan is to deposit two certificates of 
deposit maturing in FY 2024 into a LOGIC pool account upon maturity. This pool is AAA 
rated and as of 2/19/2024, the pool has a yield rate of 5.4849%. This is slightly higher 
than the other three investment pools (TexSTAR at an interest rate of 5.2938%, 
TexPool at an interest rate of 5.3387%, and Texas CLASS at an interest rate of 
5.4718%. Below is more information about the maturing CD’s later this fiscal year. 
 

Identifier Maturity Date Account Name Amount 
02589ABL5 3/4/2024 AMERICAN EXPRESS NATL BANK CD $ 248,000 
05580ae26 9/24/2024 BMW BANK NA CD $ 245,000 

 
The return rates for the above-listed investments are 1.60% and .65%, respectively. At 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



the end of FY 2025, the city could stand to earn $33,842 in interest, rather than just 
$7,545, given the current rates. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny Resolution No. 761-24, the City of Navasota LOGIC Resolution 
to become a participant of the Local Government Investment Cooperative 
(LOGIC) pool. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

  
 
    
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/21/24



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 761-24 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 

A PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT AND TRUST INSTRUMENT FOR 
PARTICIPATION IN A PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT POOL, 

DESIGNATING THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE POOL AS AN AGENCY 
AND INSTRUMENTALITY TO SUPERVISE THE POOL, APPROVING 

INVESTMENT POLICIES OF THE POOL, APPOINTING AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVES AND DESIGNATING INVESTMENT OFFICERS 

 
WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas 
Government Code, as amended (the “Interlocal Act”), permits any “local 
government” to contract with one or more other “local governments” to perform 
“governmental functions and services,” including investment of public funds (as 
such phrases are defined in the Interlocal Act); 
 
WHEREAS, the Interlocal Act authorizes the contracting parties to any interlocal 
agreement to contract with agencies of the State of Texas, within the meaning of 
Chapter 771 of the Government Code, 
 
WHEREAS, the Act permits the contracting parties to any interlocal agreement 
to create an administrative agency to supervise the performance of such 
interlocal agreement and to employ personnel and engage in other 
administrative activities and provide other administrative services necessary to 
execute the terms of such interlocal agreement; 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas 
Government Code, as amended (the “PFIA”), authorizes the entities described in 
Subsection (a) of the PFIA to invest their funds in an eligible public funds 
investment pool, and the Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) 
intends to become and remain an eligible public funds investment pool, under 
the terms and conditions set forth in PFIA; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, (the “Government Entity”) desires to enter into 
that certain Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument (the “Agreement”), a 
copy of which is presented with this Resolution and is incorporated herein by 
reference, and to become a participant in a public funds investment pool created 
under the PFIA, to be known as Local Government Investment Cooperative 
(LOGIC) (the “Pool”); 
 
WHEREAS, the Government Entity is a Government Entity as defined in the 
Agreement; 
 
WHEREAS, the Government Entity desires to cause administration of the Pool to 
be performed by a board of trustees (the “Board”), which shall be an advisory 



board under the PFIA, an administrative agency created under the Interlocal Act, 
and trustee of the funds in the Pool; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Government Entity desires to designate the Board as its agency 
and instrumentality with authority to supervise performance of the agreement, 
employ personnel and engage in other administrative activities and provide other 
administrative services necessary to execute the terms of the Agreement; 
WHEREAS, each capitalized term used in this Resolution and not otherwise 
defined has the same meaning assigned to it in the Agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota: 
 

1. The Agreement is hereby approved and adopted and, upon execution 
thereof by an Authorized Representative (defined below) and receipt of 
the Government Entity’s application to join the Pool by the Administrator, 
the Government Entity shall become a Participant in the Pool for the 
purpose of investing its available funds in the Pool from time to time in 
accordance with the terms of the Agreement.  

2. The Board is hereby designated as an agency and instrumentality of the 
Government Entity, and the Board shall have the authority to supervise 
performance of the Agreement and the Pool, employ personnel and 
engage in other administrative activities and provide other administrative 
services necessary to execute the terms of the Agreement. The 
Government Entity agrees that all moneys it transfers to the Pool shall be 
held and managed in trust by the Board for the benefit of the Government 
Entity. 

3. The investment policies of the Pool, as set forth in the document entitled 
Investment Policies, as summarized in the Information Statement, and as 
may be amended from time to time by the Board, are hereby adopted as 
investment policies of the Government Entity with respect to money 
invested in the Pool, and any existing investment policies of the 
Government Entity in conflict therewith shall not apply to investments in 
the Pool. 

4. The following officers, officials or employees of the Government Entity are 
hereby designated as “Authorized Representatives” within the meaning of 
the Agreement, with full power and authority to: execute the Agreement, 
an application to join the Pool and any other documents required to 
become a Participant; deposit money to and withdraw money from the 
Government Entity’s Pool account from time to time in accordance with 
the Agreement and the Information Statement; to agree to the terms for 
use of the website for online transactions and take all other actions 
deemed necessary or appropriate for the investment of funds of the 
Government Entity: 

a. Maribel S. Frank, Chief Financial Officer 
b. Jason B. Weeks, City Manager 
c. Bert Miller, Mayor 



5. In accordance with the Pool’s procedures, an Authorized 
Representative shall promptly notify the Pool in writing of any 
changes in who is serving as Authorized Representatives. 

a. Maribel S. Frank, CFO, will be designated as the Primary Contact 
and will receive all LOGIC correspondence including transaction 
confirmations and monthly statements 

6. In addition, the following additional Participant representative (not listed 
above) is designated as an Inquiry Only Representative authorized to 
obtain account information: 

a. Kristin Gauthier, Assistant City Manager 
7. Applicant may designate other authorized representatives by 

written instrument signed by an existing Applicant Authorized 
Representative or Applicant’s chief executive officer. 

8. In addition to the foregoing Authorized Representatives, each 
Investment Officer of the Pool appointed by the Board from time to 
time is hereby designated as an investment officer of the 
Government Entity and, as such, shall have responsibility for 
investing the share of Pool assets representing funds of the 
Government Entity. Each depository and custodian appointed by 
the Board from time to time are hereby designated as a depository 
and custodian of the Government Entity for purposes of holding the 
share of Pool assets representing funds of the Government Entity. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 26TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 
                                                        
                                                  
                                  
                                                            _______________________________ 
                                                                     BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 



LOGIC 1201 Elm Street, Suite 3500 
Phone: 1-800- TX- -800-895-

LOGIC ENROLLMENT STEPS 
________________________________________________________________________ 

In order for a governmental entity to enroll in LOGIC, the following procedures 
should be performed. 

Submit the LOGIC Resolution g body for approval.

Complete the LOGIC Additional Party Agreement which is the last page of
the LOGIC Participation Agreement. This document should be signed by
the head of the

Complete a LOGIC Bank Instruction Form for each account to be opened.

Send all completed documentation with original signatures and an approved
investment policy of the enrolling entity to :

5. Enrollment documentation will ordinarily be processed within five (5)
business days of receipt.



SAMPLE AGENDA LANGUAGE 

Short versions:

(1) Approval of LOGIC Investment Pool as an Authorized
Investment

OR

(2) Approval of Application for Participation in the Local
Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC)

Long version:

(1) Recommendation to Approve an Application for Participation
in the Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC).  
Included in the agenda exhibit is information pertaining to the 
application. It is recommended that the Board approve the application 
as submitted to provide an additional investment option emphasizing 
safety, liquidity and diversification.  



50909011.1 
1

 

Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) Resolution
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT AND TRUST INSTRUMENT FOR 
PARTICIPATION IN A PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT POOL, DESIGNATING THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE POOL AS AN AGENCY AND 
INSTRUMENTALITY TO SUPERVISE THE POOL, APPROVING INVESTMENT 
POLICIES OF THE POOL, APPOINTING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES AND 
DESIGNATING INVESTMENT OFFICERS. 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, as amended 
(the “Interlocal Act”), permits any “local government” to contract with one or more other “local governments” to 
perform “governmental functions and services,” including investment of public funds (as such phrases are 
defined in the Interlocal Act); 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Act authorizes the contracting parties to any interlocal agreement to contract 
with agencies of the State of Texas, within the meaning of Chapter 771 of the Government Code, 

WHEREAS, the Act permits the contracting parties to any interlocal agreement to create an 
administrative agency to supervise the performance of such interlocal agreement and to employ personnel and 
engage in other administrative activities and provide other administrative services necessary to execute the 
terms of such interlocal agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, as 

amended (the “PFIA”), authorizes the entities described in Subsection (a) of the PFIA to invest their funds in an 
eligible public funds investment pool, and the Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) intends to 
become and remain an eligible public funds investment pool, under the terms and conditions set forth in PFIA; 

 
WHEREAS,  (the “Government 

Entity”) desires to enter into that certain Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument (the “Agreement”), a copy 
of which is presented with this Resolution and is incorporated herein by reference, and to become a participant 
in a public funds investment pool created under the PFIA, to be known as Local Government Investment 
Cooperative (LOGIC) (the “Pool”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Government Entity is a Government Entity as defined in the Agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, the Government Entity desires to cause administration of the Pool to be performed by a 

board of trustees (the “Board”), which shall be an advisory board under the PFIA, an administrative agency 
created under the Interlocal Act, and trustee of the funds in the Pool; and 

WHEREAS, the Government Entity desires to designate the Board as its agency and instrumentality 
with authority to supervise performance of the agreement, employ personnel and engage in other administrative 
activities and provide other administrative services necessary to execute the terms of the Agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, each capitalized term used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined has the same 

meaning assigned to it in the Agreement; 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. The Agreement is hereby approved and adopted and, upon execution thereof by an Authorized 
Representative (defined below) and receipt of the Government Entity’s application to join the Pool by the 
Administrator, the Government Entity shall become a Participant in the Pool for the purpose of investing its 
available funds in the Pool from time to time in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. 

 
2. The Board is hereby designated as an agency and instrumentality of the Government Entity, 

and the Board shall have the authority to supervise performance of the Agreement and the Pool, employ 
personnel and engage in other administrative activities and provide other administrative services necessary to 



50909011.1 
2

 

execute the terms of the Agreement. The Government Entity agrees that all moneys it transfers to the Pool shall 
be held and managed in trust by the Board for the benefit of the Government Entity. 

3. The investment policies of the Pool, as set forth in the document entitled Investment Policies, as 
summarized in the Information Statement, and as may be amended from time to time by the Board, are hereby 
adopted as investment policies of the Government Entity with respect to money invested in the Pool, and any 
existing investment policies of the Government Entity in conflict therewith shall not apply to investments in the 
Pool. 

 
4. The following officers, officials or employees of the Government Entity are hereby designated as 

“Authorized Representatives” within the meaning of the Agreement, with full power and authority to: execute the 
Agreement, an application to join the Pool and any other documents required to become a Participant; deposit 
money to and withdraw money from the Government Entity’s Pool account from time to time in accordance with 
the Agreement and the Information Statement; to agree to the terms for use of the website for online 
transactions and take all other actions deemed necessary or appropriate for the investment of funds of the 
Government Entity: 

 

1. Name: Title: 
 

Signature: Phone: 
 

Email: 
 

2. Name:  Title:  
 

Signature:  Phone:   
 

Email: 
 

3. Name:  Title:  
 

Signature:  Phone:   
 

Email:  
 

4. Name:   Title:   

Signature:  Phone:   

Email:  
 
 

In accordance with the Pool’s procedures, an Authorized Representative shall promptly notify the Pool in 
writing of any changes in who is serving as Authorized Representatives. 

 
5. {Required} List the name of the Authorized Representative listed above that will be designated 
as the Primary Contact and will receive all LOGIC correspondence including transaction confirmations 
and monthly statements 

 
 

Name:  



50909011.1 
3

 

6. {Optional} In addition, the following additional Participant representative (not listed above) is 
designated as an Inquiry Only Representative authorized to obtain account information: 

Name: Title:
 

Signature: Phone: 

Email: 

 
Applicant may designate other authorized representatives by written instrument signed by an existing 
Applicant Authorized Representative or Applicant’s chief executive officer. 

7. {Required} Taxpayer Identification Number.

Applicant’s taxpayer identification number is   
 
 

8. {Required} Contact Information. 

Applicant primary mailing address: 

 

Applicant physical address (if different): 

 

Applicant main phone number: 

 

Applicants main fax number: 

 
 
 

In addition to the foregoing Authorized Representatives, each Investment Officer of the Pool appointed by the 
Board from time to time is hereby designated as an investment officer of the Government Entity and, as such, 
shall have responsibility for investing the share of Pool assets representing funds of the Government Entity. 
Each depository and custodian appointed by the Board from time to time are hereby designated as a depository 
and custodian of the Government Entity for purposes of holding the share of Pool assets representing funds of 
the Government Entity. 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this  day of  , 20  
 
 

By:   Attest:   
 
 

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title 
 
 

OFFICIAL SEAL OF APPLICANT (REQUIRED BELOW) 



50970222.1  

Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC)  
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

  THIS PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT AND TRUST INSTRUMENT (together with 
Agreement and

among each of those government entities initially executing this Agreement and any other government 

  WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government 

eligible public funds investment pool; 

  WHEREAS, each of the Participants qualifies as an entity described in the PFIA; 

  WHEREAS, the Participants desire to establish and maintain a public funds investment 
pool for the purpose of pooling their local funds for joint investment in accordance with the PFIA and the 
terms hereof and providing assistance to each other on investment alternatives and on other issues of 
concern to the Participants; 

  WHEREAS, the Participants desire that the public funds investment pool be entitled 
Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) and that it be managed and operated by a board of 
trustees, which shall be an advisory board under the PFIA;  

  WHEREAS, each of the Participants has duly taken all official action necessary and 
appropriate to become a party to this Agreement, including the adoption of a rule, order, ordinance, or 
resolution, as appropriate; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements contained herein, each Participant agrees that all moneys it transfers to LOGIC on or after the 
effective date hereof shall be held and managed in trust by the board of trustees for the benefit of the 
Participant, and the Participants mutually agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

Definitions and Rules of Construction

  Section 1.01. Definitions.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise requires: 

  Account - any account established by a Participant. 

  Additional Party Agreement - a document substantially in the form attached hereto as 
an Appendix which, when attached to a copy of this Agreement and executed by an Authorized 
Representative of a Government Entity, constitutes a valid and binding counterpart of this Agreement and 
results in the Government Entity becoming a party to this Agreement. 

  Administrator - Any person, firm or organization approved by the Board and under 
contract to provide administrative assistance in connection with the management and operation of the 
Pool. 



2
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

  Advisor - The registered investment advisor or advisors selected by or at the direction of 
the Board to provide advice regarding investment of Pool assets pursuant to this Agreement and subject to 
applicable law. 

  Authorized Investments - those investments which are authorized from time to time to 
be purchased, sold and invested in under PFIA or other applicable law and further defined in the 
Investment Policies. 

  Authorized Representative - an individual authorized to execute documents and take 
other necessary actions, pursuant to this Agreement, on behalf of a Government Entity or other person, 
firm or organization, as evidenced by a duly adopted resolution or bylaw of the governing body of such 
Government Entity or other person, firm or organization, a certified copy of which is on file with the 
Administrator.  In the case of a Government Entity that is a combination of political subdivisions under 
the Act, the Authorized Representatives of any administrative agency appointed by such combination of 
political subdivisions shall be deemed to be Authorized Representatives for such Government Entities. 

  Board - the governing body of the Pool, known as The Board of Trustees of Local 
Government Investment Cooperative. 

  Bylaws - the bylaws adopted by the Board, as the same may be amended from time to 
time, subject to the requirements of this Agreement. 

  Custodian - any person, firm or organization selected by or at the direction of the Board 
to have custody of all money, investments and other assets of the Pool pursuant to this Agreement and 
subject to applicable law. 

  General Manager - any person, firm or organization which has contracted with the 
Board to provide general management services to the Board. 

  Government Entity - a local government of the State of Texas, as defined in the PFIA, a 
state agency, as defined in the PFIA, and a nonprofit corporation acting on behalf of a local government 
or a state agency, including but not limited to an incorporated city or town, a county, a public school 
district, a district or authority created under art. III, Section 52(b)(1) or (2) of the Texas Constitution, or 
art. XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution, an institution of higher education as defined by Section 
61.003 of the Education Code, a hospital district, or a fresh water supply district. 

  Information Statement - the information statement or any other document distributed to 
Participants and potential Participants to provide them with a description of the management and 
operation of the Pool, as the same may be amended from time to time, subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement. 

  Interlocal Act - the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 
Code, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

  Investment Officer - one or more officers or employees of the Board designated as 
investment officers by the Board. 

  Investment Policies - the written Investment Policies adopted and approved by the Board 
governing investment and management of Pool assets of different Portfolios, as the same may be 
amended from time to time, subject to the requirements of this Agreement. 

  Marketing Representative - any person, firm or organization authorized by the Board to 
promote the Pool. 



3
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

  Participants - the Government Entities that are the initial parties to this Agreement and 
the Government Entities which subsequently become parties to this Agreement. 

  PFIA - the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as the 
same may be amended from time to time. 

  Pool - the public funds investment pool and trust created pursuant to this Agreement. 
   
  Portfolio - a portfolio of assets in the Pool which are held separate from other assets of 
the Pool and which are invested with a defined investment objective which may be different from other 
Portfolios in the Pool, and in which a Participant may elect to invest its funds. 

  State - the State of Texas. 
   
  Units - equal proportionate units of undivided beneficial interest in the assets of the Pool 
or of any Portfolio of the Pool from time to time, including fractions of units as well as whole units. 

  Section 1.02. General Rules of Construction. 

  (a) Whenever in this Agreement the context requires:  (1) a reference to the singular 
number shall include the plural and vice versa; and (2) a word denoting gender 
shall be construed to include the masculine, feminine, and neuter. 

  (b) The titles given to any article or section of this Agreement are for convenience 
only and are not intended to modify the article or section. 

ARTICLE II 

Creation of the Pool and Trust; Purpose and Objective

  Section 2.01. Creation of the Board. 

  (a) The Participants hereby agree to jointly invest their funds in a public funds 
investment pool and trust, to be known as Local Government Investment 

Pool e
Pool 
agency pursuant to the Interlocal Act, and as trustee of the funds in the Pool.   

  (b) The Participants delegate to the Pool through its Board, the authority to hold 
legal title to and manage all money, investments and other assets transferred to or 
acquired by the Pool pursuant to this Agreement as Pool assets.   

  (c) The Board shall have the authority to employ personnel, engage in other 
administrative activities and provide other administrative services necessary to 
accomplish the purpose of this Agreement. 

  Section 2.02. Purpose and Objective. 

  (a) The first purpose of the Pool is to provide Government Entities with a variety of 
investment vehicles to best suit their investment needs, with each Portfolio 
tailored to meet a specific investment need. 



4
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

  (b) The second purpose of the Pool is to provide Government Entities with a forum 
for discussion of, and to provide education concerning, investments and other 
issues of concern in public finance.  In all cases, however, the Pool will have the 
following investment objectives in order of priority:  safety of principal; liquidity 
in accordance with the operating requirements of the Participants; and the highest 
rate of return. 

  (c) In order to accomplish the Pool
money transferred to a Portfolio within the Pool will be commingled with other 
money transferred to the Portfolio by other Participants for the purpose of 
making Authorized Investments, subject to the terms of this Agreement, the 
Investment Policies and applicable law, thereby taking advantage of investment 
opportunities and cost benefits available to larger investors. 

ARTICLE III 

Pool Administration

  Section 3.01. The Board and the Bylaws

  (a) The business and affairs of the Pool shall be managed by the Board as governing 
body of the Pool. 

  (b) The Board is authorized to adopt Bylaws which shall set forth, among other 
things, the initial Board members, the procedures governing the selection of the 
members of the Board, the procedure for holding meetings, the election of 
officers, and other matters necessary or desirable for governance by the Board, 
and the right of the Board, the General Manager, and other consultants to be 
indemnified for damages arising from their actions in connection with the Pool.
By executing this Agreement, the Participant consents to the Bylaws.  By 
maintaining funds in the Pool after any amendment to the Bylaws becomes 
effective, the Participant consents to the Bylaws, as amended.  The Board has the 
right to amend any term or provision of the Bylaws, provided that notice is sent 
to each Participant at least 30 days prior to the effective date of any change 
which, in the opinion of the Board, is a material change to the Bylaws. 

  Section 3.02. Powers and Duties of the Board. 

  (a) Subject to applicable law and the terms of this Agreement, the Board shall have 
full and complete power to take all actions, do all things and execute all 
instruments as it deems necessary or desirable in order to carry out, promote or 
advance the investment objective, interests and purposes of the Pool to the same 
extent as if the Board was the sole and absolute owner of the Pool. 

(b) The Board shall adopt and maintain Investment Policies, consistent with the 
general objective of the Pool, which shall provide more detailed guidelines for 
investment and management of Pool assets.  By executing this Agreement, the 
initial Participants consent to the proposed Investment Policies, and the 
subsequent Participants consent to the Investment Policies then in effect.  By 
maintaining funds in the Pool after any amendment to the Investment Policies 
becomes effective, the Participant has consented to the Investment Policies, as
amended.  The Board shall, subject to the terms of this Agreement, have the 
authority to amend any term or provision of the Investment Policies, provided 



5
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

that notice is sent to each Participant at least 30 days prior to the effective date of 
any change which, in the opinion of the Board, will have a material effect on 

Pool. 

  (c) The Board shall adopt and maintain Operating Procedures, which shall provide 
more detailed information on the procedures for depositing and withdrawing 
funds from the Pool.  By executing this Agreement, the initial Participants 
consent to the proposed Operating Procedures, and the subsequent Participants 
consent to the Operating Procedures then in effect.  By maintaining funds in the 
Pool after any amendment to the Operating Procedures becomes effective, the 
Participant has consented to the Operating Procedures, as amended.  The Board 
shall, subject to the terms of this Agreement, have the authority to amend any 
term or provision of the Operating Procedures provided that notice is sent to each 
Participant at least 30 days prior to the effective date of any change which, in the 

in the Pool. 

  (d) The Board shall designate one or more Investment Officers for the Pool who 
shall be responsible for the investment of Pool assets. 

  (e) The Board shall prepare, or direct the preparation of an Information Statement 
that describes how the Pool will operate in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement and the Investment Policies.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement 
and the Investment Policies, the Information Statement may be amended or 
supplemented, notice of which will be provided to Participants in accordance 
with the disclosure requirements of the PFIA. 

  (f) The Board shall, subject to the limitations established in the Investment Policies, 
have full and complete power and authority to appoint a general manager and any 
other service providers deemed necessary or helpful in the operation of the Pool. 

  (g) The Board shall provide, through peer review, seminars, computer mail systems, 
or other means, information and educational opportunities to Participants on 
investing and on other issues in the area of public finance. 

  (h) The Board shall have full and complete power to use, or direct the use of, Pool 
assets for the following purposes: (1) incur and pay any expenses which, in its 
opinion, are necessary or incidental to or proper for carrying out any of the 
purposes of this Agreement; (2) reimburse others for the payment thereof; (3) pay 
appropriate compensation or fees to persons with whom the Pool has contracted 

or expenses related specifically to transactions in such Account. 

(i) The Board shall have full power to compromise, arbitrate, or otherwise adjust 
claims in favor of or against the Pool. 

  (j) The Board shall cause financial statements to be prepared and maintained for the 
Pool and for such statements to be audited annually by an independent certified 
public accounting firm. 

  (k) The Board may appoint a General Manager to perform managerial services for 
the Pool, provided that the Board shall continue to oversee the operation and 



6
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

management of the Pool and shall have the authority to direct the General 
Manager to take or not take specific action on behalf of the Pool. 

(l) The enumeration of any specific power or authority herein shall not be construed 
as limiting the general power and authority of the Board over the Pool. 

(m) The Board shall act in good faith in accordance with the purposes of the Pool. 

  Section 3.03. Liability. 

  (a) Neither the Board, the Investment Officers, nor any officers, employees or board 
members of any of the forgoing shall be held liable for any action or omission to 
act on behalf of the Pool 
willful misconduct or unless constituting a breach of trust for which a trustee 
may not be relieved of liability under the Texas Trust Code.  The Pool shall 
indemnify and hold harmless (either directly or through insurance) any person 
referred to in this Section, to the extent permitted by law, for any and all 
litigation, claims or other proceedings, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney fees, costs, judgments, settlement payments and penalties arising out of 
the management and operation of the Pool, unless the litigation, claim or other 
proceeding resulted from the willful misconduct of such person or a breach of 
trust for which a trustee may not be relieved of liability under the Texas Trust 
Code.   

  (b) Neither the General Manager, the Marketing Representative, the Administrator, 
the Advisor, the Subadvisor, the Custodian, nor their affiliates, officers, 
employees or board members shall be held liable for any action or omission to 
act on behalf of the Pool or the Participants unless such person failed to meet the 
standard of care required under its agreement relating to the Pool or acted with 
willful misconduct.  The Pool shall indemnify and hold harmless (either directly 
or through insurance) any person referred to in this Section, to the extent 
permitted by law, for any and all litigation, claims or other proceedings, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorney fees, costs, judgments, settlement 
payments and penalties arising out of the management and operation of the Pool,
unless the litigation, claim, or other proceeding is adjudicated to have resulted 

ndard of care required under its 
agreement relating to the Pool or its willful misconduct. 

  (c) The indemnification provisions are described in more detail in the Bylaws. 

ARTICLE IV 

Participation in LOGIC

  Section 4.01. Eligibility.  In order for a Government Entity to become a Participant 
and transfer money into the Pool, each of the following conditions must be satisfied: 

  (a) The Government Entity must adopt a resolution (1) authorizing it to become a 
Participant and approving this Agreement, (2) 
to supervise the Pool and agreeing that moneys it transfers to the Pool shall be 

, (3) 
approving the investment policies of the Pool (as amended from time to time by 



7
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

the Board) and directing that any conflicting local investment policies shall not 
apply to Pool investments of the Participant, (4) designating Authorized 
Representatives of the Participant, (5) designating the Investment Officers 
appointe
who shall be responsible for investing the share of Pool assets representing local 
funds of the Participant,  (6) designating the depository and custodian appointed 
from time to time 
custodian for purposes of holding the share of Pool assets representing funds of 
the Government Entity, and consenting to the terms and conditions specified on 
the website in order to use the online transaction system; and 

  (b) The Government Entity must become a party to this Agreement by executing an 
Additional Party Agreement and delivering the same to the Pool, together with a 
certified copy of the resolution referred to in subsection (a) of this Section, an 
application in form and substance satisfactory to the Board, and such other 
information as may be required by the Board. 

  (c) No entity except a Government Entity may be a Participant.  The Board shall 
have sole discretion to determine whether a Government Entity is eligible under 
Texas law to be a Participant and to designate categories of Government Entities 
eligible to be Participants in any Portfolio of the Pool. 

  Section 4.02. Participant Accounts. 

  (a) While available local funds of Participants may be commingled for purposes of 
common investment and operational efficiency, one or more separate Accounts 
for each Participant in each Portfolio in the Pool designated by the Participant 
will be established in accordance with the Particip
Pool and maintained by the Pool. 

  (b) Each Participant shall own an undivided beneficial interest in the assets in the 
Portfolios in which it invests, calculated as described in the Investment Policies. 

  (c) The Participant agrees that all Pool fees shall be directly and automatically 

shall be calculated as a reduction in the daily income earned and only the net 
income shall be credited to the P

Use of Pool assets for fees shall be made from current revenues available to the 
Participant. 

  Section 4.03. Reports.  The Pool shall submit a written report a least once per month 
to each Participant.  Such report will indicate: (1) the balance in each Account of a Participant as of the 
date of such report, (2) yield information, (3) all account activity since the previous report, and (4) other 
information required by the PFIA. 

  Section 4.04. Termination. 

  (a) A Participant may withdraw all funds from an Account in accordance with the 
Investment Policies and Operating Procedures.  A Participant may cease to be a 
Participant under this Agreement, with or without cause, by providing written 
notice to the Pool at least 10 days prior to such termination. 



8
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

  (b) Agreement upon at 
least 30 days  notice if Texas law changes so that such Participant is no longer 
entitled to join in an eligible public funds investment pool under PFIA, the 
Interlocal Act, or other applicable law. 

  (c) Upon the vote of a majority of its full membership, the Board may order the 
termination of this Agreement by directing that all outstanding operating 
expenses of the Pool be paid and remaining assets of the Pool be distributed to 
Participants in accordance with their respective pro rata interests. 

ARTICLE V 

Pool Assets

  Section 5.01. Investments.  Pool assets shall be invested and reinvested by the Pool 
only in Authorized Investments in accordance with the Investment Policies. 

  Section 5.02. Custody.  All money, investments and assets of the Pool shall be held in 
the possession of the Custodian. 

ARTICLE VI 

Miscellaneous

  Section 6.01. Severability.

  (a) If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be illegal, 
inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provisions 
contained herein or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any 
extent whatsoever. 

  (b) Any participation in this Agreement or transfer of assets to the Pool that is not 
qualified for any reason shall not terminate this Agreement or the participation of 
other Participants or otherwise adversely affect the Pool. 

  Section 6.02. Limitation of Rights.  This Agreement does not create any right, title or 
interest for any person other than the Participants and any person who has a contract to provide services to 
the Pool, and nothing in or to be implied from this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to give 
any other person any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Agreement. 

  Section 6.03. Execution of Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in
several separate counterparts, including by Additional Party Agreement, each of which shall be an 
original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

  Section 6.04. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State.   

  Section 6.05. Term.  This Agreement shall have an initial term beginning with the 
effective date set forth below and shall be automatically renewed for one year on such date and each 
anniversary of such date, except with respect to any Government Entity that may have terminated itself as 
a Participant or as otherwise provided in Section 4.05. 



9
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

  Section 6.06. Notices.  Any notices or other information required or permitted to be 
given hereunder shall be sent:  (a) to the Pool as set forth in the Information Statement, and (b) to a 
Participant as set forth in its application to become a Participant or as otherwise provided by written 
notice to the Administrator. 

  Section 6.07.  Trust.  LOGIC shall be a trust organized and existing under the laws of 
the State.  LOGIC is not intended to be, shall not be deemed to be, and shall not be treated as a general 
partnership, limited partnership, joint venture, corporation, investment company, or joint stock company.  
The Participants shall be beneficiaries in LOGIC, and their relationship to the Board shall be solely in 
their capacity as Participants and beneficiaries in accordance with the rights conferred upon them 
hereunder. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to make the Participants, either by themselves 
or with the trustees, partners, or members of a joint stock association.   

  Section 6.08. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Agreement represents the 
entire agreement and understanding of the Participants. This Agreement may be amended with the 
approval of the Board, provided that notice of any such amendment is sent to all Participants at least 60 
days prior to the effective date thereof. 

* * * * * 

   



10
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

Originally executed between Fort Bend County and City of Wichita Falls, Texas as of April 4, 
1994, and amended by the Board and effective March 1, 1999 and December 4, 2015. The Board 
hereby acknowledges its duties as Trustee upon the effective date hereof. 

* * * * *

Approved and accepted: 

The Board of Directors, Local Government Investment Cooperative  

By:    /s/  Phil Roberson    Date: December 4, 2015 
  President 

   



11
Local Government Investment Cooperative  (LOGIC) 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument

Additional Party Agreement

The Government Entity of the State of Texas named below, acting by and through 
the undersigned Authorized Representative, hereby agrees to become a party to that certain 
Participation Agreement and Trust Instrument to which this page is attached, and thereby 
become a Participant in the Local Government Investment Cooperative, subject to all of the 
terms and provisions of such Agreement.  The undersigned hereby represents that it is a 
Government Entity as defined in such Agreement. 

Executed this ________ day of ________________________, 20_____. 

Name of Government Entity _____________________________________

By:  ________________________________ 
    Authorized Representative 

________________________________
Printed Name and Title 

Attest:  ______________________________ 
 Authorized Representative 

________________________________
 Printed Name and Title 

Approved and accepted: 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT COOPERATIVE {LOGIC}

By:
Participant Services Administrator 

By: _____________________________________  Date: ____________________ 

Authorized Signer 

OFFICIAL SEAL OF APPLICANT
Required Below



BANK INSTRUCTION FORM 

Add Bank Instruction: 

PLEASE INDICATE IF THIS WILL BE THE PRIMARY BANK INSTRUCTION OR    ADDITIONAL BANK INSTRUCTION

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING   WIRE AND ACH   WIRE ONLY     ACH ONLY 

Bank Name: ______________________________________________________________  City________________________________

Bank ABA Number (9 digits): ________________________Bank ABA for ACH (if different) (9 digits): __________________________

Bank Account Number: ___________________________________ Bank Account Name: ______________________________________

Correspondent Bank Name (if any): _________________________________________  

Correspondent Bank ABA Number: __________________________________ Account Number: ____________________________

Delete Bank Instruction: 

PLEASE INDICATE IF THIS WILL BE THE PRIMARY BANK INSTRUCTION OR  ADDITIONAL BANK INSTRUCTION

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING   WIRE AND ACH   WIRE ONLY     ACH ONLY 

Bank Name: ______________________________________________________________ City________________________________

Bank ABA Number (9 digits): ________________________Bank ABA for ACH (if different) (9 digits): __________________________

Bank Account Number: ___________________________________ Bank Account Name: ______________________________________

Correspondent Bank Name (if any): _________________________________________

Correspondent Bank ABA Number: ____________________________________ Account Number: __________________________

* If ACH availability is selected, I hereby authorize JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to directly deposit and withdraw funds by means of ACH electronic transfer
to and from the financial institution and the account designated I agree that this authorization may be withdrawn with at least
45-days advance written notice to LOGIC Participant Services. I understand that the LOGIC reserves the right to discontinue ACH electronic transfer
without advance notice. I also authorize JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to deduct from the Designated Account or from subsequent deposits made to the
Designated Account all amounts deposited in error. I authorize JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to credit all amounts withdrawn in error to Designated Account.

NOTE:  This authorization must be executed by two current Authorized Representatives of the Participant on file with LOGIC. 
As a current Authorized Representative, I certify that the above information is both true and correct. 

________________________________________ ___________________________________ ________________________________ _________________
Authorized Representative Signature Printed Name  Title  Date

_____________________________________   _________________________________  ______________________________ _________________
Authorized Representative Signature           Printed Name Title         Date 

Please complete this form either all typed or all handwritten.  Forms with alterations (i.e. white out, mark out, etc.) will NOT be accepted.

EFFECTIVE DATE: ________________________________

PARTICIPANT NAME: ______________________________

ACCOUNT NUMBER: ______________________________

PLEASE SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

NEW ACCOUNT: NAME ________________________________

CHANGE EXISTING ACCT: _____________________________

APPLY CHANGE TO ALL ACCOUNTS



   
 

   
 

 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 26, 2024  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: ROW closure Application, Ordinance No. 
1039-24, and Survey 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 

Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 1039-24, 
closing a thirty-three (33’) foot portion of Horlock Avenue right-of-way within Block 1 
of the Felder Addition located at 1210 Kettler Street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Greg Backus applied to request closure of a portion of Horlock Avenue right-of-way. 
There is approximately a 33’ foot wide right-of-way adjoining the property located at 
1210 Kettler. Recently, Mr. Backhus attempted to sell the property and while 
undergoing that process the unused strip of right-of-way was discovered. Mr. Backhus 
has provided the necessary information required to approve this request. 
 
On February 12, 2024, City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 1039-
24 closing the 33’ portion of Horlock Avenue right-of-way. Therefore, staff is 
recommending the Council approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 1039-24. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny the second reading of Ordinance No. 1039-24, closing a thirty-
three (33’) foot portion of Horlock Avenue right-of-way within Block 1 of the 
Felder Addition located at 1210 Kettler Street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 

 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



   
 

   
 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 

     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/21/24



LEGEND 

1-=--=-- CONCRETE 

I.I WATER METER 

(E'l PROPANf: TANK 

El ELECTRIC METER 
!!l TELE-FIBER Box 

>---- GUY WIRE 
• POWER POLE 

+-----AERIAL ELECTRIC LINE 

,-..•--•- FENCE 

NOTES: 

SCALE: /" = JO' 
BASIS OF BEARINGS 8. DISTANCES 

GRID NORTH, STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM 
OF /98J, CENTRAL ZONE, LE!CA RTK NETWORK 

DANIEL ARNOLD SURVEY 

A-2

I) ALL DEED REFERENCES ARE OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF GRIMES COUNTY, TEXAS. 
Z) THE SIGNATURE 8 SEAL AFFIXED HEREON ARE CERTIFIED TO GREG BACKHUS. 
3) It> Z0ZJ BY WISNOSKI LANO SURVEYING LLC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
l.) THE SUBJECT TRACT DOES NOT APPEAR TO BE LOCATED WITHIN ZONE "A" OF FEMA'S FIRM 
NO. l.8185C OJl.OC WITH AN EFFECTIVE DA TE OF APRIL 3. ZOIZ. 

POINT OF 8EGINNI 
(Fo) 318" 

5) ALL DISTANCES AND AREAS ARE GRID ANO CAN SE CONVERTED TO SURFACE BY DIVIDING BY A 
COMBINED SCALE FACTOR OF 0.999 9JJ 503 43. 

SITUATED IN GRIHES COUNTY, TEXAS, OUT OF THE DANIEL ARNOt.D SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
2 a BEING A PORTION OF HORLOCI\ AVENUE ADJACENT TO BLOCK I OF THE FELDER ADDITION 
1..0CATED IN THE CITY OF NAVASOTA ACCORDING TO THE HAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECOROED 
IN VOLUME 37, PAGE 516 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF GRIHES COUNTY, TEXAS. 

GREG BACKHUS 

This survey substantially complies with the current 
Texas Society of Professional Surveyors Standards and 
Specifications for a Catagory 18 Condition II Survey. 

<:i-4= r Jtp l
Steven M. Wisnoski Date: November 11, 2023 
R.P.L.S. 6006 

Wisnoski Land Surveying LLC 
POBoJ{ 1744

Navasota, Texas 77868 
936-870-7100 Joe #:

TBPELS Rrm ti: 10085300 ICl 2023-11-0Z-01 

/ 

/ 

SET 

/ 

MCNAIR ADDITION 
BLOCK 4 

(38-11) 

8" TR 

FELDER ADDITION 
BLOCK I 
(31-516) 

CALLED 0. 22 ACRE, MORE OR LESS 
ROBERT MALEK, ET UX 

(/3l.9-4l.l.) 

MICHELE LYN STEINHAUSER 
(/749-636) 

/4 .. 
/4"'

1>
--11 

�() !)i 
,. "-'" CALLEO 9,989. 183 So. Fr., MORE OR LESS 

VERONICA LUGO CARDONA 
(/583-181) 

(Fo) 318. 1R 





ORDINANCE NO. 1039-24  

  

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ABANDONMENT OF A 

PORTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY; PROVIDING FOR THE 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH ABANDONMENT, AND 

CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING.  

  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 

TEXAS:  

  

PART 1: That the following described portion of a Public Right of Way, as 

described on Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for 

all purposes, be, and the same is hereby ABANDONED, VACATED, and 

CLOSED insofar as the right, title or easement of the public is concerned.  

  

PART 2: That said portion of a Public Right of Way is not needed for public 

purposes and it is in the public interest of the City of Navasota, Texas, to 

abandon said described portion of a Public Right of Way.  

  

PART 3:  That the City hereby reserves all public utility easements located 

within that portion of the Public Right of Way so abandoned.  

  

PART 4:  That all right, title, and interest in the oil, gas, and other minerals in, 

on, under, and that may be produced from portion of Public Right of Way be 

reserved by and to the benefit of the City.  

  

PART 5: That the abandonment provided for herein shall extend only to the 

public right, title and easement in and to the tracts of land described in Part 1 of 

this Ordinance, and shall be construed only to that interest the governing body 

of the City of Navasota may legally and lawfully abandon, and excepting 

therefrom the reservations in favor of the City note herein.  

  

  

PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 12TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 

2024.   

                                                                                    

                                                                           

                                                          _____________________                                                                         

                                                                 BERT MILLER, MAYOR  

  

 

 



ATTEST: 

 ________________________________ 

 SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY   

   PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 26TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 

2024.   

 _____________________ 

 BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 ________________________________ 

 SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY   



Exhibit "A"























































 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

Agenda Date Requested: February 26, 2024  
Requested By: Kristin Gauthier, Asst. City Mgr.  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Resolution No. 760-24 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 760-24, authorizing the 
submission of an application to the United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) Rural Development for the Community Facilities Direct Loan, Grants, and 
Guarantee Loans Program and authorize the mayor and city manager to act as the 
City’s executive officer and authorized representative in all matters pertaining to 
the City’s participation in the USDA Rural Development Program. 

 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 

Currently, the Navasota Police Department (NPD) Dispatch division is using consoles 
that were made in the 1980-1990’s. These consoles have eight (8) channel option 
buttons, for which the radios in the radio room are programmed to a specific channel. 
The new model consoles are digital touchscreen. If an officer or firefighter leaves the 
city, they may get on another agency’s channel. Rather than the dispatcher having to 
walk to the radio room (down the hall) and manually change the channel, the 
dispatcher can change the radio channel from the console.  
 
Our current consoles have mechanical issues, such as the speaker or buttons falling 
off. Parts for these consoles are obsolete. If parts are needed, our current option is 
attempting to buy them from eBay or a parts store that has our specific console on a 
shelf and they can remove the part for our use. Our dispatch consoles have reached 
the end of their useful life. In fact, earlier this month, one of the Dispatch consoles 
had to be removed for service due to no available parts. 
 
NPD has a desperate need to replace the Dispatch consoles, especially the one that 
was placed out of service this month. The new consoles will have a software system 
to upgrade for call alerts, radio checks, and the ability to identify the officer or 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



firefighter radio that is keying up (talking). There is the ability to name each radio in 
the patrol units to the specific patrol unit number, as well as name the officer’s radio 
with their last name. This is a key safety feature, as Dispatch will be able to identify 
which officer is speaking via the radio identifier and new console. Dispatchers will not 
have to ask the officer to repeat the unit number. Also, the console package includes 
a headset for dispatchers so they can hear and speak clearly to the officers or 
firefighters, versus leaning forward and manually pressing the mic button to speak. 
For example, a dispatcher can focus on the screen for vehicle returns and read them 
off while directly focusing on the screen rather than leaning down to the mic and 
looking up and down constantly to re-read the information from the computer screen. 
  
Police Chief Mize and Fire Chief Katkoski both worked with Motorola to pick one of 
the newest consoles that will benefit both departments and the dispatch division. 
Zetron is a well-known brand in the dispatcher community and is backed by Motorola. 
After getting our first quote in 2022, the price increased 10%, which has increased 
almost 10% each year. This quote was provided in July 2023 and has been locked in 
since but will increase again if we cannot verify the purchase. 
 
Representatives from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) reached 
out to the City Manager and Assistant City Manager on February 21, 2024, to discuss 
grant and loan opportunities via a USDA Rural Development Loan & Grant Program. 
The Community Facilities Direct Loan, Grants, and Guarantee Loans Program would 
provide funding to improve, construct, develop, or finance essential community 
facilities for rural communities such as Navasota for public safety facilities. Therefore, 
staff recommends City Council approve Resolution No. 760-24 authorizing the 
submission of an application to the USDA Rural Development for a grant to fund one 
of the dispatch consoles using the Community Facilities Direct Loan, Grants, and 
Guarantee Loans Program. 
 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny Resolution No. 760-24 authorizing the submission of an 
application to the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) for the 
Community Facilities Direct Loan, Grants, and Guarantee Loans Program and 
authorize the mayor and city manager to act as the City’s executive officer and 
authorized representative in all matters pertaining to the City’s participation in 
the USDA Rural Development Program. 
 

 
Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

  
 
    
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/2124



RESOLUTION NO: 760-24 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING 

THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO THE US DEPARTMENT OF 

AGRICULTURE (USDA) RURAL DEVELOPMENT FOR THE COMMUNITY 

FACILITIES LOAN AND GRANT PROGRAM; AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

AND CITY MANAGER TO ACT AS THE CITY'S EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE CITY'S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE USDA COMMUNITY FACILITIES LOAN AND GRANT 

PROGRAM. 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Navasota, Texas intends to pursue an application with USDA 

Rural Development through the Community Facilities Loan and Grant Program to 

construct and/or purchase dispatch console(s) for the Navasota Dispatch Center; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, 

TEXAS: 

 

1.That a Community Facilities Loan and Grant Program application is hereby authorized 

to be filed by the City of Navasota with the USDA Rural Development; 

 

2. That the Mayor and City Manager is authorized and empowered to take all action 

necessary or appropriate in the execution of all written instruments as may be required 

in regard to or as evidence of such loan and/or grant, to include any and all application 

documents, acceptance of the loan and/or grant assistance when made, and any other 

documents required to complete the project on behalf of the City; 

 

3.That the City of Navasota agrees to operate the facility under the terms offered in said 

grant agreement(s). 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 26TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024. 

 

      

 

     ______________________________ 

                BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #8 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 26, 2024  
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Draft Facility Use Policy, Current Rental 
Policy, Navasota Rental Form & Presentation 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 
Consideration and possible action on a new proposed Parks & Recreation 
Department Facility Use Policy.  
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
During the fiscal year 2022-23 budget process, the City Council moved forward with the 
funding of an additional position as the Parks & Recreation Manager. This position has 
oversite of all parks, programming, athletic programs, and facility rentals. Additionally, as 
outlined in the approved Strategic Plan - Goal #3 identifies quality of life measures, with 
the overall goal of creating, enhancing, and improving program offerings and recreational 
facilities. 
 
With the addition of a Parks & Recreation Manager in combination with the adoption of 
the FY 2023-2024 City of Navasota Strategic Plan, the Parks & Recreation Department 
has identified an area of improvement in the department to enhance programming efforts 
and lessen financial risk by updating the city’s Facility Use Policy. 
 
While the City already has a rental policy in place, the current rental policy and procedures 
in place do not fully protect the city and its assets from risk if or when an incident occurs. 
Today, the legal best business practice is to have the responsible party have liability 
coverage policy on hand. The idea of liability insurance coverage is not to just protect the 
city, but primarily the responsible party if/when an incident occurs from risk. The insurance 
policy is needed to protect the responsible party from the financial devastation a legal 
proceeding could have as well as protecting the city’s assets from damage cost. 
 
On November 27, 2023, staff presented a new proposed Parks & Recreation Department 
Facility Use Policy. Unfortunately, due to time constraints that presentation was 
postponed until December 12, 2023, to finish the discussions. After further discussions 

Appropriation 
Source of Funds: N/A  

Account Number: N/A  

Amount Budgeted: N/A  

Amount Requested: N/A  

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



among staff and Council, the Mayor appointed Councilmembers Pattie Pederson and 
Josh Fultz to a subcommittee to address some of Council’s concerns within the proposed 
new Facility Use Policy. In January 2024, the subcommittee met with staff twice to revise 
the Facility Use Policy. Tonight, staff will be presenting the recommended Parks & 
Recreation Department Facility Use Policy, which has been revised to address the 
concerns of the Council and the public. Additionally, staff recommends Council make an 
effective date of April 1, 2024, to allow for publishing of the new policy to the community 
as well as posting the new policy on the City’s website. 
 
The new proposed facility use policy clarifies what an acceptable use of a city facility is, 
general rules and regulations for the facilities, defines qualifications for certain rate/fee 
schedules, identifies groups (residents, non-residents, non-profits, etc.), and highlights a 
standard insurance requirement for all users of city facilities. Additionally, the new facility 
use policy introduces a “Special Event Permit” that will encourage large gatherings to be 
well planned, organized, and reviewed closely by staff. This process will not only make 
these events safer and more enjoyable for the attendees, but help prevent these events 
from having unsafe practices, getting out of control, and causing chaos as well as possible 
criminal activity inside/outside the city limits. 
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny the new proposed Parks & Recreation Department Facility Use 
Policy with an effective date of April 1, 2024. 
 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/22/24



 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 

FACILITY USE POLICY 
 

 

UPDATED 2024 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2/12 
 

1) PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
 
a) The City of Navasota has limited facilities that may offer opportunities for public use.  
b) This Facility Use Policy is designed to govern the use of City‐owned facilities by the 

community, community based and other non-profit groups and/or organizations, and 
state/county offices that are not directly associated with the City of Navasota ("City").  

c) This policy describes the terms, conditions, allowable uses, and user qualifications required 
for the utilization of Available Facilities. 

d) These standards are intended to facilitate orderly processing of reservation requests and to 
preserve the non-public forum status of the facilities. 
 

2) INTERPRETATION AND IMPLEMENTATION 
 
a) The City Manager and/or the City Manager’s designee shall have the responsibility to 

administer and enforce the Facility Use Policy and shall have the authority to deny or 
terminate the use of a facility if a determination is made that the use does not conform to 
the requirements of the Facility Use Policy.  

b) The City Manager has the discretion to make changes to the Facility Use Policy and may 
restrict public access to any meeting rooms, city facilities, or city owned property that the 
City Manager determines not suitable for holding public events.  

c) At the discretion of the City Manager, the City may waive any requirement of this policy 
if the result of said waiver would be in the best interest of the City. 

d) The City Manager shall have the final authority to interpret the Facility Use Policy. 
 

3) DEFINITIONS 
 
 Deposit – Money given as a pledge or down payment. 
 Event – A large social occasion or activity.  
 Facility – Something that is built, installed, or established to serve a particular purpose. 
 Fee – A sum paid or charge for a service. 
 Meeting – An act or process of coming together. 
 Non-Profit – Any Navasota based group that has obtained and provided proof of status as 

a charitable organization pursuant to Section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 Non-Resident – A person or family that does not reside within the corporate limits of the 

City of Navasota. 
 Park – An area designed for a specific type of use or recreation. 
 Party – A moderately sized social gathering of 65 people or less. 
 Property – Something owned or possessed. 
 Public Forum – A place or location to exercise free speech and public debate. 
 Rate – A charge or price fixed to a ratio, scale, or standard. 
 Renter – A financially responsible adult aged 21 years or older who rents a city facility. 
 Reservation – An arrangement to have something held for one’s use. 



3/12 
 

 Resident – A person or family that resides within the corporate limits of the City of 
Navasota. 

 Roster – A list containing ALL participants’ first and last name, age, physical address, and 
school they attend (if necessary). 

 Security Officer – A person who holds an active Peace Officer or TCOLE Certification 
AND is approved by Navasota Chief of Police 

 Special Event – A large social occasion or activity of 66 people or more and may put the 
general public at risk. 
 

4. GENERAL FACILITY USAGE 
 
a) Facilities of the City of Navasota are primarily designed to accommodate the programs, 

activities, and meetings of various City departments, the City Council, and City boards and 
commissions.  

b) It is intended that these facilities be used to the fullest extent for these primary purposes.  
c) Accordingly, City government functions shall in all cases take precedence over all other 

activities at any City facility. 
d) Specified meeting rooms, banquet halls, pavilions, parks, etc. in certain City facilities, 

when not being used by the City, shall be made available to Community Residents, Non-
Residents, Community Based and other Non-Profits, and State/County offices. 

e) Each individual, group, or association is subjected to a fee schedule based on qualifications. 
f) The City reserves the right to close the meeting rooms, banquet halls, pavilions, parks, etc. 

for public use and terminate the limited public forum at any time. 
 

5. GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
 
For the facilities to be enjoyed by everyone, the following basic rules of good conduct must be 
observed at all City facilities: 
 
a) Attendance at meetings will be limited to the capacity of the individual meeting rooms as 

determined by the City of Navasota Fire Chief.  
b) Seating and/or supplementary furniture are not allowed in corridors outside the meeting 

rooms.  
c) No Center fixtures, furniture, equipment, or any other property may be moved or relocated. 
d) Groups may only enter and exit the building from the public doors. Doors may not be 

propped open, and emergency exits cannot be blocked.  
e) City staff will control all heating, air conditioning, lighting, and any other electrical or 

mechanical system(s) in the building. The applicant shall only make requests to the City 
staff for any adjustments.  

f) No group or participant may affix, tack, staple, tape, or fix with an adhesive any item to 
any part of a meeting room, including walls, doors, door frames, window treatments, or 
woodwork.  



4/12 
 

g) Meeting room doors must be closed while conducting meetings during business hours. The 
conduct of the meeting will be respectable and well governed.  

h) The noise level in the lobby area shall be kept to a minimum.  
i) All arrangements for the Reservation, including but not limited to DJ’s, bands, sound 

systems, tents, caterers, inflatables, and deliveries by agents must be approved through the 
Parks and Recreation Department. Failure to do so may result in immediate loss of the 
Reservation, deposit, and associated fees. 

j) Use of the facility must not interfere with the conduct of official City business or be unduly 
disruptive to others present in the City facility or to adjacent properties.  

k) Non-alcoholic beverages and light refreshments are allowed.  
l) All trash, including food and beverage, created by the user or participants, shall be placed 

in proper receptacles, and disposed of in outside dumpsters at conclusion of event.  
m) No pets shall be permitted inside the facilities, only service animals are allowed.  
n) Smoking, including e-cigarettes and vaping, is prohibited inside City facilities.  
o) No alcoholic beverages or illegal substances shall be served upon, consumed upon, or 

brought into the City facility unless approved through Special Event Permit. 
p) No sparklers, open flames, or burning candles are permitted unless approved through 

Special Event Permit.  
q) No pyrotechnic devices, fireworks, or fog machines are allowed inside the City facility or 

on City property.  
r) Use of any glitter, confetti, silly string, or streamers is prohibited.  
s) All City facilities shall be left condition that it was found. All tables and chairs must be 

returned to the original arrangement when the use of the facility is complete.  
t) The Applicant will be responsible for the provision of any specific non‐facility Americans 

with Disabilities Act (ADA) required accommodations.  
u) No Group may consider a City facility its permanent meeting place, use for storage, or use 

the City facility or Municipal Office Building as its mailing address unless approved by 
City Manager with an agreement is in place. 

v) All minors, individuals younger than 18 years of age, must be accompanied by an adult, 
with no more than 10 minors per 1 adult. 

w) Failure to abide by above rules and regulations will be terms for immediate reservation 
cancelation and forfeiture of ALL paid deposits and associated fees.  
 

6. RESERVATION REGULATIONS  
 
a) Reservations must be made online or at City Hall during business hours (8A-5P, Monday 

through Friday) NO LESS THAN 14 DAYS in advance of the event date, and will be taken 
on a first come, first serve basis. Phone call reservations are prohibited. 

b) Reservation requests made LESS THAN 14 DAYS will be automatically denied.  
c) No reservation is confirmed unless the Renting Party provides any necessary 

documentation for the event, completes the Rental Agreement Form, acknowledges to the 
facility use policy and waivers, and ALL fees are paid in full.  

d) Reservations may be made up to 12 months in advance.  



5/12 
 

e) Special Event Permit request must be made at least 45 days prior to a scheduled event for 
Bluebonnet Hall, August Horst Pavilion, Pool, or any Park. 

f) The rental time block stated on the form includes arriving, setting up, decorating, hosting 
the event, and cleaning up afterwards. The end time reflects when the doors/gates to the 
facility will be locked.  

g) Renter is prohibited from entering the facility or arriving earlier for setup prior to than the 
listed start time on the reservation.  

h) If the renter stays past the designated time on their reservation, renter will be charged for 
$20 for each minute past end time to the credit card on file.  

i) The City reserves the right to cancel any Reservation in the event of unforeseen 
circumstances and in the public interest. In such an event, notice of cancellation will be 
given as early as practicable and the deposit and fees will be promptly refunded.  

j) The Navasota Center is used as a shelter in the event of an emergency (ex: flooding). In 
such an event, the need for shelter takes priority over a Reservation. The Renting Party will 
be notified as early as practicable and may either be refunded all fees paid or work with 
staff to reschedule for a later date.  

k) Requests for date or time change must be made 14 days in advance in writing for regular 
reservations and 30 days in advance for Special Events Permits. Staff will notify the 
Renting Party if the request is approved as quickly as possible.  
 

7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
a) City facilities shall NOT be used for the following: 

i. Any commercial business, fee‐based or promotional activity;  
ii. Any programs involving the sale, advertising, or promotion of products or services;  

iii. Any business firms and other for-profit organizations soliciting or selling products or 
services, regardless of purpose;  

iv. Any meeting or activity that solicits funds or donations or accepts such from attendees;  
v. Any political fundraisers, political advocacy, or other partisan political meetings, 

rallies, or campaign activities/events;  
vi. Any meeting whose noise levels will interfere with other reserved activities in adjacent 

rooms/properties;  
vii. Any groups that will have participants in excess of the occupancy limit; 

viii. Any illegal activity;  
ix. Any purposes contrary to federal, state, or local law;  
x. Any activity not consistent with the general business purpose of the building;  

xi. Any other use that deviates from the City of Navasota’s mission statement, vision 
statement, and/or core values. 
 

8.  DEPOSITS AND FEES 
 
a) Deposits are REQUIRED to be paid in full for ALL reservations at the time of request with 

a credit card on file. 



6/12 
 

b) Deposits will be used to reserve time slot in city recreation software and will be applied to 
the cost of any damage occurred during rental and/or any unnecessary cleaning by city staff 
should the Renter fail to return the rented facility to its original state.  

c) Any damage to the Renting Facility in excess of the paid Deposit is the personal 
responsibility of the Renting Party and will be charged directly to the Renter.  

d) Deposits may not be rolled over to secure future reservations. 
e) All fees for a Reservation must be paid in full 14 days prior to the event. Failure to pay the 

remaining balance by that time cancels the Reservation and forfeits the deposit. 
f) Fees and deposits are subject to change without notice. 
g) Forfeiture of deposit will result for any parties that fail to adhere to the facility use policy, 

include alcohol on the premises without stating it on the Special Events Permit, or for 
parties where alcohol is consumed outside of the time frame stated on the form.  

h) In the event the violating party violates any provision of this policy, the renting party will 
also lose privileges to rent any city facility in the future. 
 

9. RENTAL RATES 
 
a) Rental rates differ based on residency, non-profit status, event type, etc.  
b) Rental rates are increased after business hours, on weekends, and holidays (if applicable).  
c) Rental rates are subject to change without notice. 
d) Renter is the responsible party, MUST be in attendance at the event, and is the onsite 

contact.  
e) A person must be 21 years of age or older to rent a city facility.  

 
i. Resident: 

a. A Resident is defined as a person or family that resides within the corporate limits 
of the City of Navasota. 

b. To receive the Navasota resident rental rate, proof of Navasota residency is required 
(e.g., a current government-issued ID or utility bill with a Navasota address).  

c. Renter is the responsible party, MUST be in attendance at the event, and is the 
onsite contact.  

d. A person must be 21 years of age or older to rent a city facility.  
 

ii. Non-Resident: 
a. A Non-resident is a person or family that does not reside within the corporate limits 

of the City of Navasota. 
b. A Non-Resident could have a Navasota address and still be considered a non-

resident.  
c. Non-residents are subject to the non-resident rate. 

 
 
 
 



7/12 
 

iii. Non-Profit: 
a. Navasota based non-profits are defined as any Navasota based group that has 

obtained and provided proof of status as a charitable organization pursuant to 
Section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code.  

b. During regular building operating hours (8am-5pm Monday – Friday), Navasota 
non-profit groups are charged 50% of the rental fee and are required to pay the 
room deposit for each time the facility is used.  

c. ALL Navasota non-profit groups are subject to pay the full rental fee and deposit 
after operating hours (5pm – 10pm Monday – Friday and Weekends/Holidays).  

d. Navasota non-profits must provide a membership roster showing at least 51% of its 
members being Navasota residents.  

e. ALL other non-profits not based in Navasota will pay rental fees and deposits based 
on Non-Resident fee.  
 

10. CANCELATIONS 
 
a) Cancelations must be made in writing (e.g., e-mail) no less than 14 days in advance of the 

Reservation in order to receive a full refund of all paid fees and deposits.  
a) Less than 14 days’ notice will result in a loss of any paid rental fees and deposit. 
b) The City reserves the right to cancel any Reservation in the event of unforeseen 

circumstances and in the public interest. In such an event, notice of cancellation will be 
given as early as practicable and the deposit and fees will be promptly refunded.  
 

11. REFUNDS 
 
a) The Deposit will be refunded to the Renter to the credit card on file as long as all policies 

are upheld, and no fees accrued.  
 

12. ATHLETIC FIELDS AND FACILITIES 
 
a) Athletics fields and facilities (Navasota Municipal Pool, Manley Ball Fields, Logan 

Sechelski Fields, August Horst Baseball Fields, August Horst Football Field) are available 
for use by the general public during normal business and/or operating hours. 

b) Athletics fields and facilities may also be reserved for exclusive seasonal use by Navasota 
based Youth or Adult Non-Profit sports organizations and have priority over general public 
rentals. 

c) Athletic fields and facilities deposits, rates, and fees are subject to change at any time. 
d) Any scheduled tournament, game, practice, etc. exceeding 100 or more visitors is subject 

to a Special Event Permit Request and associated cost unless waived by the City Manager. 
e) ATHLETIC FIELDS AND FACILITY RENTALS MAY BE DECLINED OR 

CANCELED AT ANYTIME IF IT DEVIATES FROM THE CITY OF NAVASOTA’S 
MISSION STATEMENT, VISION STATEMENT, AND/OR CORE VALUES. 
 



8/12 
 

13. SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
 
a) A Special Event Permit request is REQUIRED when any of the following occur: 

i. Any event or reservation containing 66 people or more; 
ii. Use of Bluebonnet Hall, August Horst Pavilion, or Municipal Pool; 

iii. Use of ANY city park or city owned property; 
iv. Event will be used as a fundraiser or advertised to the public; 
v. Interferes with the normal flow or regulation of pedestrian or vehicular traffic (e.g., 

Parades, Runs, Walks, Block Parties, etc.); 
vi. Public safety may be at risk (Alcohol present, Security required, etc.) 

b) A Special Event Permit request is NOT required for any of the following: 
i. A private event on a residential property that has no more than 100 guests, is contained 

on property lines of host, adequate parking is provided, not advertised to the public, 
and follows the noise ordinance; 

ii. Funeral Processions. 
c) Special Event Permit request MUST be submitted at least 45 days prior to the event date 

request with an attached $100 non-refundable application fee.  
d) The application fee will be in addition to any facility security deposits and associated fees 

with any City facility or property usage.  
e) Special Event Permits will be approved/disapproved pending compliance and noted 

concerns within 14 days of request submission.  
f) Applicants may appeal denial to the City Manager ONE time with submission of required 

additional documentation within 14 days of denial notice.  
g) A person must be 21 years of age or older to rent a city facility.  
h) SPECIAL EVENT PERMITS MAY BE DECLINED AT ANYTIME IF IT 

DEVIATES FROM THE CITY OF NAVASOTA’S MISSION STATEMENT, VISION 
STATEMENT, AND/OR CORE VALUES. 
 

14. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
a) At least one Security Officer is REQUIRED at ALL events that need a Special Events 

Permit. 
b) A Security Officer is defined as a person who holds an active Peace Officer or TCOLE 

Certification AND approved by the Navasota Chief of Police. 
c) Hired security officer(s) that are NOT a current Navasota Police Department Officer are 

required to notify and be approved by Navasota Chief of Police within 14 days of event 
being worked within city limits. 

d) Rates for security start at $50 an hour and are subject to price increases with total amount 
of people present, alcohol present, assumed risk level, etc.  

e) Renter is responsible for ALL cost of security and any increased rates depending on the 
nature of their reservation as determined by Navasota Chief of Police.  

f) Security Ratio is 1 officer: 100 people (e.g. event with 101 people will require at least 2 
officers minimum) 



9/12 
 

g) RENTERS WILL BE CHARGED FOR A MINIMUM 2 HOURS IF SECURITY IS 
NEEDED. 
 

15. INSURANCE REQUIRMENTS FOR ARRANGEMENTS 
 
a) ALL renters using 3rd party vendor(s) (ex. Inflatables, DJ with amplified sound equipment, 

Caterers, etc.) during their rental times is REQUIRED to submit the vendors Certificate 
of Liability Insurance within 14 days of event date to the Parks and Recreation Department. 

b) ALL events that do not have proper insurance policy documentation prior to event are 
subject to cancellation of event and forfeiture of any payments made. 

c) The City of Navasota MUST be listed as an "Additional Insured" on the Certificate of 
Liability Insurance and a copy of the Additional Insured endorsement/policy language must 
be attached/uploaded to reservation file.  

d) The minimum limits of liability REQUIRED are:  
i. $1,000,000 per occurrence and  

ii. $2,000,000 in aggregate.  
e) THE CITY OF NAVASOTA IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR INJURIES TO 

PARTICIPANTS AND/OR SPECTATORS AND IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
DAMAGE TO AND/OR LOSS OF A RENTER'S PROPERTY. TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE RENTER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND 
HOLD THE CITY OF NAVASOTA HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS 
FOR MONETARY DAMAGES OR OTHER RELIEF RESULTING FROM THE 
RENTER'S INVITEES AND/OR USE OF THE FACILITY AS CONTEMPLATED 
BY THIS AGREEMENT. SUCH INDEMNITY SHALL INCLUDE DEFENSE 
COSTS AGAINST ANY SUCH CLAIM INCURRED BY THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
AND ITS COUNSEL OF RECORD. 
 

16. FACILITY CLEAN UP 
 
a) All City facilities shall be left condition that it was found. All tables and chairs must be 

returned to the original arrangement when the use of the facility is complete.  
b) The Renting Party is responsible for cleaning the rented facility prior to the end of the rental 

time block. Staff on site will provide a cleaning checklist. Cleaning supplies are NOT 
provided. 

c) Failure to clean up room or facility after reservation in accordance with the checklist will 
result in a forfeiture of the entire room or facility deposit. 
 

17. PARKING 
 
a) ALL facility visitors are required to park in designated marked parking spots when 

available. 
b) Vehicles may only be parked on the Center’s east building ramp for a maximum of 20 

minutes for the purpose of loading and unloading. 



10/12 
 

c) Parking vehicles on grassy areas is strictly prohibited. 
d) Any vehicle parked inappropriately is subject to towing, tickets, etc. at the owner’s 

expense. 
 

18. NOISE 
 
a) Use of amplified sound equipment is permitted in accordance with applicable noise 

ordinances, and as long as a Special Event Permit Request and/or vendor insurance has 
been submitted and been approved from the Parks and Recreation Department at least 14 
days prior to the event reservation date.  
 

19. EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE 
 
a) The use, alteration, removal, damage, or destruction of any City equipment and/or furniture 

is strictly prohibited. 
b) The Rental Applicant will be held responsible for any damages to any City-owned property 

or equipment.  
c) The Rental Applicant will be charged to the fullest extent for damages, machinery rental, 

and/or labor charges used to return facility back to original condition. 
 

20. PETS AND SERVICE ANIMALS 
 
a) Texas law states that service animals (Canine) may not be denied entry to a public facility.  
b) If a person’s disability is not readily apparent, a staff member or manager of the facility 

may inquire about if the service animal is required and/or what type of service the animal 
provides.  

c) Service animals must be harnessed at ALL times.  
d) The person with a disability who uses a service animal on city property is liable for any 

and all damage done to city facilities and/or its visitors by the animal. 
 

21. DISCLAIMER  
 
a) Use of City facilities does not constitute City endorsement of the viewpoints, beliefs, ideas, 

or policies expressed by organizations or individuals using the space and may not be 
advertised or implied as having such approval or endorsement. 
 

22. USE OF CITY NAME OR LOGO 
 
a) Unauthorized use of the “City of Navasota” name is strictly prohibited by any organization 

or person for any purpose in connection with the use of the meeting rooms for publicity or 
otherwise, except to identify the location of the event.  

b) Unapproved use of the “City of Navasota” name and/or logo may be grounds for 
termination of the use agreement and may be subject to other legal actions. 



11/12 
 

23. NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 
a) The City will not discriminate against any person or persons because of their age, sex, race, 

disability, religion, color, or natural origin, nor will the City permit individuals or Groups 
making the reservation to engage in such discrimination. 

b) ANY RENTAL OR SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT MAY BE DECLINED AT 
ANYTIME IF IT DEVIATES FROM THE CITY OF NAVASOTA’S MISSION 
STATEMENT, VISION STATEMENT, AND/OR CORE VALUES. 
 

24. RELEASE AND WAIVER OF LIABILITY & ASUMPTION OF RISK AND 
INDEMNITY 
 
a) THE CITY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR 

INJURY TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY BROUGHT OR PLACED IN THE 
FACILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF THE FACILITY. BY 
SUBMITTING THE FACILITY USE APPLICATION, THE APPLICANT AGREES 
IN WRITING (I) TO COMPLY WITH THE FACILITY USE POLICY AND (II) TO 
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, ITS 
OFFICERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OR SUITS FOR BODILY INJURY, ILLNESS, DEATH, 
PERSONAL INJURY, OR PROPERTY DAMAGE (INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, REASONABLE FEES AND EXPENSES OF ATTORNEY, EXPERT 
WITNESSES AND OTHER CONSULTANTS) ARISING OUT OF APPLICANT’S 
USE OF THE FACILITY, OR ARISING OUT OF ANY ACT OR OMISSION 
COMMITTED BY THE APPLICANT, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, 
GUEST, AND INVITEES, IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACTIVITIES 
CONDUCTED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THIS INDEMNIFICATION AND 
HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT SHALL SPECIFICALLY INCLUDE ANY 
CLAIMS ARISING FROM THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, 
OFFICIALS, AND EMPLOYEES. 

b) THE RENTER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES TO CITY OWNED 
PROPERTY OR FACILITIES BEFORE, DURING, AND AFTER THE EVENT. 

i. COST OF REPAIRS WILL BE DEDUCTED FROM THE DEPOSIT, AND THE 
TOTAL DEPOSIT WILL BE HELD UNTIL REPAIRS ARE COMPLETED. 

ii. IF THE COST OF REPAIRS EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF THE DEPOSIT, THE 
RENTER WILL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PAY THE CITY IN FULL FOR COST 
IN EXCESS TO THE DEPOSIT AMOUNT. 

c) RENTER AGREES TO THIS RELEASE AND WAIVER OF LIABLITY, 
ASSUMPTION OF RISK AND INDEMNITY, AND THE RENTAL INFORMATION 
EXECUTED BY RENTER IS GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS. IF THE FINAL JUDGMENT OF A COURT OF COMPETENT 
JURISDICTION INVALIDATES ANY PART OF THE AGREEMENTS, THEN THE 
REMAINING PARTS MUST BE ENFORCED, TO THE EXTENT POSSIBLE, 



12/12 
 

CONSISTENT WITH THE INTENT OF THE PARTIES AS EVIDENCED BY THE 
AGREEMENTS. THE VENUE FOR ALL LAWSUITS CONCERNING THESE 
AGREEMENTS MUST BE IN THE STATE DISTRICT COURTS OF GRIMES 
COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 



Navasota Parks and Recreation 
 

Phone: 936-825-6475   

 

 

RENTAL 
POLICIES 

 

RESERVATION REGULATIONS 

1. Reservations must be made online or at City Hall during business hours (8A-5P, Monday 
through Friday) NO LESS than two (2) weeks in advance of the event date, and will be taken 
on a first come, first serve basis. 

2. Reservation requests made less than two (2) weeks in advance are subject to staff availability and 
must be approved by the Program Coordinator. If approved, the rental must be paid by cash or 
card. 

3. No reservation is confirmed unless the Renting Party signs both the Rental Agreement Form and 
Rental Policies, and all fees are paid. 

4. Reservations may be made up to 12 months in advance. 
5. The rental time block stated on the form includes arriving, setting up, decorating, hosting 

the event, and cleaning up afterward. The end time reflects when the doors/gates to the 
facility will be locked. 

6. The City reserves the right to cancel any Reservation in the event of unforeseen circumstances and in 
the public interest. In such an event, notice of cancellation will be given as early as practicable and the 
deposit and fees will be promptly refunded. 

7. The Navasota Center is used as a shelter in the event of an emergency (ex: flooding). In such an 
event, the need for shelter takes priority over a Reservation. The Renting Party will be notified as early 
as practicable and may either be refunded all fees paid or work with staff to reschedule for a later 
date. 

8. Requests for date or time change must be made two (2) weeks in advance in writing. Staff 
will notify the Renting Party if the request is approved as quickly as possible. 

FEES AND DEPOSITS 

1. All fees and deposits for a Reservation must be paid by noon the business day prior to the 
event. Failure to pay the remaining balance by that time cancels the Reservation and forfeits 
the deposit. 

2. Deposits will be applied to the cost of any damage occurring during the Reservation, the cost for staff to 
remove trash from the facilities and grounds, and the cost for staff to clean up in any capacity should 
the Renting Party fail to do so. 

3. The Renting Party will be charged $50.00 per day in storage fees for any materials and equipment 
brought in by the Renting Party, its licensees or its guests that are left after the Reservation time. 

4. Any damage to the Renting Facility in excess of the paid Deposit is the personal responsibility of 
the Renting Party and will be charged directly to the Renting Party. 

5. Rental Fees are subject to change without notice. 
6. Cancellations must be made in writing no less than two (2) weeks in advance of the 

Reservation in order to receive a full refund of all paid fees and deposits. Less than two 
weeks’ notice may result in loss of deposit. 

7. The Deposit will be refunded to the Renting Party – as long as all policies are upheld and no fees 
accrued – by mail 10 – 12 business days after the event. 

8. A Holdover Fee will be charged to the Renting Party for any amount of time the Renting Party 
stays beyond the stated rental time block. This fee will be taken from the Deposit, and a letter will 
be sent to the Renting Party notifying him or her of the amount withheld. 

9. A separate fee is charged for the presence of a Security Officer and is $25.00/hour, minimum of 
four (4) hours required. Rental Party will pay the Security Officer in cash upon arrival. 

10. Forfeiture of deposit will result for any parties that include alcohol without stating it on the Rental 



Navasota Parks and Recreation 
 

Phone: 936-825-6475   

 

 

Agreement Form, or for parties where alcohol is consumed outside of the time frame stated on the 
form. The Renting Party may also lose privileges to renting the facility in the future. 

 
USAGE POLICY – GENERAL 

1. The name, logo, and seal of the City of Navasota, or any portion thereof, may not be used by any 
organization or individual (ex: invitations, notices, etc.) without written permission from the City. 

2. The Renting Party may not use glitter, confetti, silly string, or birdseed at an event, whether 
inside or outside of a facility or its grounds. Only soap bubbles and flower petals are allowed. 

3. Fire codes, as imposed by the City of Navasota, must be met at all times. Failure to comply will 
result in the event being shut down by staff on site, and forfeiture of the Deposit. 

4. Decorations may not be tacked, pinned, taped, stapled, or otherwise placed on facility 
walls, ceilings, windows, furniture or other City property. 

5. Flyers/banners/promotional materials may not be taped to the outside doors or windows. 
6. No animals are allowed inside the facility, except those to assist individuals with disabilities. 
7. The person stated on the Rental Agreement Form must be present for the entire duration of the rental 

time block. This individual is responsible for ensuring all guests remain in the rented portion of the 
facility throughout the event. 

8. Functions that include the serving of alcoholic beverages shall be conducted under the laws of the 
State of Texas and regulations of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission. If alcohol is provided or 
consumed, whether by purchase or distribution at an event, staff requires the presence of a Security 
Officer. The Security Officer will be scheduled by PARD staff. The selling of alcohol is prohibited at 
all City rental facilities. Softball tournaments shall be specially permitted and if alcohol is to be 
consumed, the Renting Party shall secure and pay for the cost of a Security Officer, who must be in 
attendance at all time during the tournament play. The Renting Party will be held liable and is 
responsible for the actions of an intoxicated guest, and the Renting Party shall indemnify and hold the 
City of Navasota harmless from any and all claims or causes of action resulting from the use of 
intoxicating beverages at any function. NO GLASS CONTAINERS ARE ALLOWED. 

9. A Security Officer must be present at functions that meet any of the following requirements: 
a. Any event where alcohol is present (Bluebonnet Hall and A.H. Pavilion only) 
b. Any event beginning after 5PM on Friday or Saturday evening 
c. Any event ending after 9PM 
d. Any dance or party for children or teens 

10. Any violation of the Rental Policies will result in forfeiture of deposit and loss of privileges to use the 
facility. 

11. All arrangements for the Reservation, including but not limited to DJ’s, bands, sound systems, 
tents, and deliveries by agents must be approved by the PARD staff in advance of the event date. 
Failure to do so may result in loss of the Reservation and Deposit. 

USAGE POLICY – NAVASOTA CENTER 

1. Smoking is prohibited in the Navasota Center and on the adjacent grounds. 
2. A Center Attendant is required to be on site during all rentals, and will unlock the facility at the event start 

time. 
3. Use of Center equipment or furniture must be arranged in advance with the Program Coordinator as 

part of the Rental Agreement. The City does not provide furniture for outside rentals. 
4. No Center fixtures, furniture, equipment or any other property may be moved or relocated. 
5. Vehicle and building entrances and exits must remain clear and accessible at all times. Vehicles 

may only be parked on the Center’s east building ramp for a maximum of 20 minutes for the 
purpose of loading and unloading. 

6. Guests are not allowed to loiter in outdoor spaces of the Center or in common areas shared by other 



Navasota Parks and Recreation 
 

Phone: 936-825-6475   

 

 

guests. 
7. Alcohol use is limited to the Bluebonnet Hall and kitchen, and must be stated on the signed Rental 

Agreement Form. Alcohol includes wine, beer, champagne, liquor, spirits, etc. NO GLASS 
CONTAINERS ALLOWED. 

8. Use of sound amplification equipment is permitted, however, volume must not disturb other rentals, and 
cannot 
be heard outside of the facility. 

9. The Renting Party is responsible for cleaning the rented facility prior to the end of the rental time block. 
Staff on site will provide a checklist and cleaning supplies. 

USAGE POLICY – AUGUST HORST PAVILION 

1. The Renting Party must pick up a key to the facility before 5P the last business day prior to the event 
date. 

2. The Deposit will not be considered for a refund until the Renting Party returns the key to City Hall. 
3. The Rental Party is responsible for taking trash from the pavilion and restrooms to the dumpster 

located in the parking lot. 
4. The City does not provide cleaning supplies at the facility to assist in required cleaning. 
5. Any use of bounce houses or other equipment rented by a third party must be approved by PARD 

staff prior to the event date, and must be removed by the end of the rental time block. 
6. Alcohol is permitted when stated on the Rental Agreement Form, and requires the presence of a 

Security Officer. 
7. The City does not provide water or electric at the facility. 
8. Use of amplified sound equipment is permitted, and requires a Sound Amplification Permit to be 

obtained from the Permits Department at City Hall prior to the event date. 

USAGE POLICY – KETCHUM PARK AND BRULE PARK 

1. Parks do not include water, electric or restrooms. 
2. The rental time block reserves exclusive use of the park for the Renting Party. 
3. The Renting Party is responsible for ensuring all trash from the event is cleaned. Trash cans are 

provided on site. USAGE POLICY – NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL POOL 

1. The Renting Party is responsible for ensuring all guests adhere to the posted facility rules and 
respect the lifeguards on duty. 

2. The Renting Party is responsible for removing trash at the end of the rental time block, whether private 
party or cabana rental, and taking it to the dumpster located by the Navasota Center. 

3. Food is permitted within the pool facility, but must stay at the tables. NO GLASS CONTAINERS. 
4. All Fees and Deposits and General Usage Policies contained herein apply to pool rentals. 
5. Alcohol is not permitted. 
6. Private parties are limited to Friday and Saturday evening 8P to 10P or Saturday and Sunday 

mornings 10A to 12P or 11A to 1P. 
7. Cabana rentals take place during Open Swim hours. The pool remains open to the public, and 

swimmers must pay $3 entry fee. Cabana rentals only include reserving the tables and chair under 
the specified cabana. 


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Introduction of new employees: Jerry Hirsh (Police Officer/SRO); Martin Solis (Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I); and Donald Mason, Jr. (Natural Gas Technician). [Peggy Johnson, HR Director]
(b) Update on CIP Projects. [Jon MacKay, Graduate Engineer]
(c) Results of Annual Natural Gas Audit. [Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director]
(c) Board and Commission update. [City Council]
(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 Strategic Plan
	 Planning Calendar

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 761-24, the City of Navasota LOGIC Resolution to become a participant of the Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) pool. [Maribel Frank, CFO]
	 Resolution No. 761-24
	 LOGIC Enrollment Packet

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 1039-24, closing a thirty-three (33') foot portion of Horlock Avenue right-of-way within Block 1 of the Felder Addition located at 1210 Kettler Street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 Exhibit A Survey & Notes
	 Ordinance 1039-24
	 Application

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  
Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 760-24, authorizing the submission of an application to the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development for the Community Facilities Direct Loan, Grants, and Guarantee Loans Program and authorize the mayor and city manager to act as the City's executive officer and authorized representative in all matters pertaining to the City's participation in the USDA Rural Development Program. [Kristin Gauthier, Assistant City Manager]

	 Resolution 760-24

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  
Consideration and possible action on a new Parks & Recreation Department Facility Use Policy. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]

	 New Proposed P&R Dept Facility Use Policy
	 Current Policy




